






ITEM 3 
 

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
December 4, 2024 

 
In compliance with the provisions of the Government Code section 54953(e), this meeting of the 
C/CAG Finance Committee was be held in person and by teleconference. 
 
Committee Members Attending In-Person:  
Carlos Romero – City of East Palo Alto 
Adam Rak – City of San Carlos 
Michael Salazar  – City of San Bruno 
 
Committee Members Attending Remotely (Publicly Accessible Teleconference Location):  
Donna Colson –  City of Burlingame 
 
Committee Members Attending Remotely (AB2449):  
Maria Chuang  – Town of Hillsborough 
 
Guests or Staff Attending In-Person: 
Sean Charpentier, Kaki Cheung, Kim Wever, – C/CAG Staff 
 
Guests or Staff Attending Remotely: 
Paul Harris, Paula Decano – City of San Carlos Finance Staff 
Ahmed Badawi, Samo Michel – Badawi & Associates 
 
1. Call to order/Roll Call 
 
At 9:03 A.M. Vice Chair Rak called the Finance Committee meeting to order.  
 
2. Public comment on related items not on the agenda. 
 
There were no public comments regarding items not on the agenda. 
 
3. Approval of the following minutes:  

3A. Approval of the minutes from the May 22, 2024 meeting. (Action) 
3B. Approval of the minutes from the August 21, 2024 meeting. (Action) 
 

Motion – To approve the minutes of the May 22, 2024 and the August 21, 2024 Finance 
Committee meetings, Romero/Salazar. Roll Call was taken. All members in attendance voted to 
approve. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
4. Receive copies of monthly investment statements for July, August, and September 2024. 

(Information) 
 
Committee members reviewed the investment statements, cash flow reports, and the investment 
summary page. 

1



 

 
 

 
5. Review of the quarterly investment report and recommend modifications to the C/CAG 

investment portfolio as needed. (Action) 
 

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier provided a summary of the quarterly investment 
report. Sean stated that the total C/CAG portfolio asset allocation at the end of the quarter was 
60% to LAIF and 40% to the CoPool Fund, which is within the stated investment policy 
allocation ranges and staff recommended no modifications at this time.  
 
Motion – To recommend no change to the C/CAG investment portfolio. The Committee guided 
staff to continue monitoring the interest rates, Colson/Romero. Roll Call was taken. All members 
in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
6. Review and accept the C/CAG Financial Statements (Audit) for Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2024 and communicate with representative from auditing firm. (Action) 
 
C/CAG Execute Director Sean Charpentier stated that there were no notable findings in the 
audit.  
 
City of San Carlos Financial Services Manager Paul Harris agreed that the audit was clean and 
thanked the staff for their open communication. He introduced Ahmed Badawi, a representative 
from Badawi & Associates, the accounting firm that conducted the annual audits.  
 
Ahmed Badawi reported that the audit was clean and consistent and confirmed that management 
responded promptly. 
 
Member Romero requested a format change on page 22 to make the table easier to read. 
 
Motion – To accept the C/CAG Financial Statements (Audit) for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024. 
Salazar/Chuang. Roll Call was taken. All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed 
5-0. 
 
7. Review and accept the following C/CAG Programs Audits: 

7A. Review and accept the C/CAG State Transportation Improvement  
Program (STIP) Planning, Programming & Monitoring Program (PPM) Final 
Project Expenditure Audit Report from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 (Action) 

 
Motion – To accept the C/CAG State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Planning, 
Programming & Monitoring Program (PPM) Final Project Expenditure Audit Report from July 
1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, Salazar/Romero. Roll Call was taken. All members in attendance 
voted to approve. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
7B. Review and accept the Measure M Fund Financial Statements (Audit) for  

        the Year Ended June 30, 2024. (Action) 
 
Motion – To accept Measure M Fund Financial Statements (Audit) for the Year Ended June 30, 
2024, Salazar/Chuang. Roll Call was taken. All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion 
passed 5-0. 

 

2



 

 
 

 
8. Review and accept the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager 

Fund Projects Financial Audit for Project Period Ended June 30, 2023. (Action) 
 
C/CAG staff Kim Wever provided background on the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) Program Manager Fund Projects Financial Audit for Project Period Ended June 30, 
2023. For San Mateo County, the auditors completed all of the audit procedures and collected 
sufficient evidence to issue the audit report in July of 2024.  However, because the auditors were 
waiting for materials from other County Program Managers from other Counties, the auditors did 
not finalize the TFCA audit until November of 2024. Ms. Wever stated that there were not any 
notable findings in the audit.  
 
Motion – To accept the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Fund 
Projects Financial Audit for Project Period Ended June 30, 2023, Salazar/Chuang. Roll Call was 
taken. All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
9. Review and approve the 2025 Finance Committee Meeting Calendar. (Action) 
 
Motion – To approve the 2025 Finance Committee Meeting Calendar, Romero/Salazar. Roll Call 
was taken. All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
10. Review and recommend Board approval of the C/CAG Travel Policy. (Action) 
 
C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier presented the proposed C/CAG Travel Policy and 
explained that the C/CAG Board currently operates without an official Travel Policy, relying 
instead on the County of San Mateo’s Travel Policy for guidance. To codify existing practices, 
staff recommend adopting a C/CAG Travel Policy that is based on the County’s Travel Policy.  
 
Member Salazar asked whether there is a process to adopt changes made by the County. Staff 
will confirm with legal counsel regarding any updates. 
 
Motion – To recommend  Board approval of the C/CAG Travel Policy, Salazar/Romero. Roll 
Call was taken. All members in attendance voted to approve. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
11. Adjournment.  
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:36 A.M.  
 

3



ITEM 4 
 C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: February 26, 2025 
 
To:  C/CAG Finance Committee  
 
From:  Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
   
Subject: Receive copies of monthly investment statements for October, November, and 

December 2024 
 

(For further information contact Kim Wever at kwever@smcgov.org) 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee receives copies of monthly investment statements for 
October, November, and December 2024. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
C/CAG funds are held by the C/CAG Financial Agent (City of San Carlos) 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current C/CAG Investment Policy states that the C/CAG Finance Committee shall analyze 
investment portfolio at least every quarter. Attached are the monthly statements for C/CAG 
investment funds for the quarter ending on December 31, 2024. 
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
C/CAG’s Investment Policy supports investment in authorized issuers that display adherence to 
strong environmental, social and governance (ESG) principles, including but not limited to, 
environmental sustainability, social and economic justice, and good corporate governance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. C/CAG’s Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows, LAIF, and SMC Investment Fund 
Summary for October, November, and December 2024. 

2. LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending December 31, 2024. 
3. San Mateo County Treasurer’s Office Pool Participants Distribution December 31, 2024. 
4. County Summary of Pool Earnings for October, November, and December 2024. 
5. Overview of Market and Investment Statements Quarter Ending December 31, 2024. 

4



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended December 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Oct 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 1,939,191                       

Congestion Relief & Management South San Francisco 198,820                           
Express Lane JPA San Mateo County Transportation Authority 84,505                             
Energy Watch PG&E 33,239                             
Measure M DMV 1,183,990                        
Member Contributions South San Francisco 25,819                             
All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 1,682                               

Total Oct Cash Inflow  1,528,054                        

Congestion Relief & Management
Audrey Shiramizu, Fehr & Peers Associates, Gray Bowen Scott, Ken Brown, 
Lacap Jeffrey, Mig Inc, Redwood City, San Mateo County (175,608)                          

Express Lane JPA Redwood City, San Mateo County (27,600)                            

Smart Corridor Aegis ITS, Kimley Horm & Associates, South San Francisco (261,900)                          
Energy Watch Redwood City, San Mateo County (23,495)                            

NPDES
Reid Bogert, EOA Inc, Geosyntec Consultant, Ken Brown, Redwood City, San 
Mateo County, Shaw/Yoder/Antwih (147,243)                          

Measure M Mig, Inc, Redwood City, San Mateo County (19,887)                            
Bay Area Air Quality San Mateo County (2,171)                              

All other payments (13) various (60,780)                            

Total Oct Cash Outflow  (718,684)                          
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) 809,370                           

Ending book balance (Checking) 2,748,561                       

October Cash Flow

ATTACHMENT 1

5



      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

November 15, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

October 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

10/15/2024 10/14/2024 QRD 1761087 N/A SYSTEM 203,325.71

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 203,325.71   Beginning Balance: 17,723,602.92

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 17,926,928.63

11/15/24, 8:31 AM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

October LAIF Statement

6

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer Statement Ending Date: 10/31/2024

555 County Center Account: 03412

Redwood City, 94063

(650) 599-1251 or (650) 599-7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

9/30/2024 Balance brought forward    $11,799,617.79

10/1/2024 FY24-25 Interest Allocation Q1 $107,223.04 $11,906,840.83

10/31/2024 Ending Balance $11,906,840.83

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments - 03412 

October County Pool Statement

7



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended December 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Nov 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 2,748,561                       

Express Lane JPA San Mateo County Transportation Authority 55,151                             
Energy Watch PG&E 44,030                             
Measure M DMV 558,721                           
All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 1,541                               

Total Nov Cash Inflow  659,443                           

Congestion Relief & Management

Audrey Shiramizu, California Association Of Council Of Governments, Kaki 
Cheung, Commute.Org, Fehr & Peers Associates, Gray Bowen Scott, Kimberly 
Wever, Mig Inc, Redwood City, San Mateo County, Shaw/Yoder/Antwih In

(445,100)                          

Express Lane JPA San Mateo County, Redwood City (49,717)                            

Smart Corridor Iteris Inc, Kimley Horm & Associates (84,164)                            
Energy Watch San Mateo County, Mig Inc, Redwood City (79,594)                            

NPDES

Bawsca, Brisbane, Climate Resilient, Colma, Daniel Sternkopf, Engineering 
Data Sof, Eoa Inc, Geosyntec Consultant, Ken Brown, Mig Inc, Redwood City, 
San Mateo County, Woodside (423,197)                          

Measure M
Kaki Cheung, Eoa Inc, Mig Inc, Millbrae, Pacifica, Redwood City, San Mateo 
County, Woodside

(351,081)                          

Bay Area Air Quality San Mateo County, Commute.org (133,860)                          

All other payments (23) various (59,567)                            

Total Nov Cash Outflow  (1,626,279)                      
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) (966,836)                         

Ending book balance (Checking) 1,781,725                       

November Cash Flow

8



      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

December 13, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

November 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00   Beginning Balance: 17,926,928.63

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 17,926,928.63

12/13/24, 12:57 PM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

November LAIF Statement

9

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer Statement Ending Date: 11/30/2024

555 County Center Account: 03412

Redwood City, 94063

(650) 599-1251 or (650) 599-7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

10/31/2024 Balance brought forward    $11,906,840.83

11/30/2024 Ending Balance $11,906,840.83

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments - 03412 

November County Pool Statement

10



CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Recap of Monthly Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

for Quarter Ended December 31, 2024

Major Cash Inflows and Outflows

Month Program From/To Amount - In/(Out)
Dec 2024 Beginning book balance (Checking) 1,781,725                       

Energy Watch PG&E 42,139                             
NPDES San Mateo County 846,215                           

Measure M DMV 560,551                           

All other Receipts (1) WF Interest 1,564                               

Transfer San Mateo County Pool 800,000                           

Transfer LAIF 200,000                           

Total Dec Cash Inflow  2,450,469                        

Congestion Relief & Management

Audrey Shiramizu, Kaki Cheung, Commute.Org, Fehr & Peers Associates, Gray 
Bowen Scott, Kimberly Wever, Mig Inc, Redwood City, San Mateo County, 
Shaw/Yoder/Antwih, California Association Of Council Of Governments (191,432)                          

Express Lane JPA San Mateo County (28,147)                            

Smart Corridor Aegis Its, Iteris Inc, S.R Rose Engineering (37,835)                            

Energy Watch San Mateo County (39,022)                            

NPDES
Reid Bogert, Colantuono, EOA Inc, Geosyntec Consultant, San Mateo County, 
Kshaw/Yoder/Antwih (314,310)                          

Measure M

Atherton, Belmont, Burlingame, EOA Inc, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Mig Inc, 
Portola Valley, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo, San Mateo 
County, South San Francisco (1,780,431)                      

Bay Area Air Quality San Mateo County (3,085)                              
All other payments (9) various (10,283)                            

Transfer LAIF (400,000)                          

Total Dec Cash Outflow  (2,804,545)                      

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) (354,077)                         
Ending book balance (Checking) 1,427,648                       

December Cash Flow

11



      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

January 03, 2025

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICER
600 ELM STREET
SAN CARLOS, CA  94070

Account Number: 40-41-004

December 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

12/12/2024 12/10/2024 RW 1764250 1724800 PAUL HARRIS -800,000.00
12/20/2024 12/19/2024 RD 1764613 1725161 PAUL HARRIS 400,000.00

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 400,000.00   Beginning Balance: 17,926,928.63

Total Withdrawal: -800,000.00 Ending Balance: 17,526,928.63

1/3/25, 2:33 PM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

December LAIF Statement

12

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


San Mateo County Treasurer Statement Ending Date: 12/31/2024
555 County Center Account: 03412
Redwood City, 94063
(650) 599-1251 or (650) 599-7206

DATE DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS ACCOUNT BALANCE

11/30/2024 Balance brought forward    $11,906,840.83

12/20/2024 Wire Out $200,000.00 $11,706,840.83

12/31/2024 Ending Balance $11,706,840.83

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
City/County Association of Governments - 03412 

December County Pool Statement

13



December 4.434
November 4.477

October 4.518
September 4.575

August 4.579
July 4.516

PMIA Average Life(1): 252

 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.999621985
PMIA Daily(1): 4.40

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 4.48

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 4.62
 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00012664187216722

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.28

Treasuries
55.91%

Agencies
25.25%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

8.46%

Time 
Deposits

3.27%

Commercial
Paper
6.40%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.58%

Loans
0.13%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year.

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of California, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report 
as of 01/22/25

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 12/31/24

Chart does not include $1,239,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

12/31/24
$155.4 billion

ATTACHMENT 2

14

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf
kwever
Highlight

kwever
Highlight



�������������	
�����

��
������	�
���������
����	�
�����

�

�����	���	�	����	�����
�������������	������	������������������������������� ! "�����#�������	�	��$���
����%
�&##�
�

'()*�+,,�-./0�+,,�1234�4567896�2:;<=>?�@AA6B<C56�DC6>EFGHIJ�JKLMNOL�HPQRSTU�VWWLXRYKL�ZYLT[\� ]�� �̂� ��� ��� ��� ]�� ]�� ��_ ��� &
	 ��� ��
àbb cdeef cdggf cdggf cdgcf cdegf cdhcf cdijf gdfcf gdfif gdfif gdgkf gdejfàbl gdimf edfcf edknf edmef edjhg edcgi edgcm edhmk edhek hdkkf hdmhg hdegiàba hdeee hdifn hdhmf idfhm idfng idmmn idmfm idcmh idmci idhkn kfdmmjkfdmkhàl!kfdihfkkdmckkkdnifkkdnhfkmdfkekkdeihkfdmfg idhef idinc kfdfcgkfdnmgkfdigkàl̀ kfdihekkdghgkkdkjfkkdneckmdkeikkdnnmkmdjngkmdhnnkmdfcikmdjiekkdhhekkdnhnàl kkdghjkmdfnnkkdhjckkdeejkmdmefkkdiinkmdmjckkdifikkdkckkkdkkkkfdefnkfdnfkàlokfdmck idhhe idghh idhgh idcme idgff idhei kfdfegkfdmfmkfdkhmkfdkgnkfdmmeàlpkfdjkmkfdmhfkfdjhmkfdcinkfdhnjkkdkkikkdjcckkdccekkdciekkdghkkkdnenkkdfmnàl"kfdceikfdmhikfdkkhkfdfmckfdkhfidenj idgcg idnke idcem idnhm idnhh idjekàlq idmcm idfif hdich hdgmk hdjgi hdmmc hdknk edhnn edckm edchg ednjm ednjiàlb edjgc edkce edmfc edfnn edmin edmhi edngn edcgm edekm edhmc hdkmk hdfekàll hdfeh hdfcf edinc edinf edhkc edimi hdfhi hdmnc hdjnk hdjie hdnge hdcgjàla hdgih hdeef hdhef hdiim idmme idmfn idfcg hdhjj hdhfk hdeek hdghc hdgncàa! hdcek hdcjh hdcfg hdnie hdcjk hdcjh hdcke hdjhm hdjjj hdjmk hdmgi hdmeiàà hdkgn hdffm edeec edggg edjen edkgi edfih edfem gdhci gdeki gdcik gdjkhàa gdkmm cdhgj cdghf cdgim cdjei cdjmj cdmjc ndich ndegf ndejf ndgci ndgneàao ndgeh ndgni ndgmn ndgfc ndnme ndccn ndnjh ndnem ndnjf ndjhf ndjgc ndjhnàap ndjci ndkeg ndmnh ndjjj ndnjn ndgmj ndhmj ndihi cdkfg cdmnj cdjhf cdcmhàa" cdgkm cdeei cdijn cdigf gdffh cdiie cdiem cdikf cdhjm cdehn cdhfc cdenhàaq cdgih cdgnj cdcce cdcjh cdcfm cdcnh cdche cdcgg cdgfk cdgfk cdcii cdcenàab cdchj cdcec cdchf cdgkm cdgjn cdgge cdgei cdgif cdefe cdefc cdekc cdennàal cdenm cdemf cdghf cdgem cdgej cdgek cdgcm cdgcm cdgji cdcce cdnim cdjenàaa cdmgc cdmkf cdkjg cdkki cdfhg cdfic cdkeh cdmmc cdmen cdjik cdnhn cdgji !!! cdegf cdhmn cdhck gdfkn gdkif gdjni gdnnj gdcfc gdcfm gdcke gdcjh gdcjc !!̀ gdjem gdkgi cdieg cdegf cdjmh ndich ndgjc ndcfm ndmhh jdehc jdcmg jdmgk !! jdfgh mdige mdhgk mdhnc mdenf mdghe mdekn mdcin mdgfn mdnhe mdjfk mdmfk !!o mdkfj kdinc kdifn kdhch kdegi kdgie kdgcj kdgjm kdgjc kdcig kdcem kdcnc !!p kdcmh kdnnf kdnen kdnnc kdnmg kdngi kdgfn kdgem kdeek kdhif mdffj mdkjn !!" mdmgn mdjgh mdcnm mdemn mdhcg mdige jdfhj jdkei jdjmn jdnch jdgjg jdhfh !!q jdicc ndfnj ndknm ndjfc ndcgj ndeff ndhni nding cdfmj cdfih cdkmc cdkmi !!b cdkcg cdkhk cdmkn cdmmm cdmnh cdmcf cdmcc cdmcj cdmjk cdkje ndigm ndhfk !!l ndgmf ndkgk jdeee jdnff jdfem mdhin mdehe mdeei mdeen mdefi mdcgh mdjcj !!a mdfng kdhgi kdhmm kdgfe kdcjf kdjee kdfjc fdimc fdecf fdgng fdgkk fdcgi !̀! fdcch fdcee fdcne fdchh fdcgf fdcmh fdcjk fdckj fdcff fdnhf fdncn fdngm !̀` fdcjh fdckm fdcff fdchh fdnkj fdnnh fdjhk fdnfh fdjeh fdjhc fdnfk fdjhm !̀ fdjhc fdjhi fdjhj fdjge fdjgj fdjch fdjgj fdjee fdjnh fdjnf fdjmn fdjmg !̀o fdjff fdmhg fdmhc fdmgn fdmnc fdmnn fdmge fdmek fdmce fdmgg fdmgj fdmgn !̀p fdmnn fdmjg fdmjg fdmjj fdmmh fdmmh fdmnn fdmgf fdmng fdmgk fdmgk fdmge !̀" fdmgm fdmgg fdmeh fdmhj fdmif fdmii fdjmf fdjjf fdjje fdjce fdjen fdnff !̀q fdnng fdnge fdcfg fdcmc fdccm fdceg fdchh fdgkn fdgjn fdgcn fdgeh fdeki !̀b fdeck fdeee fdhmk fdhhn fdimc fdieh kdfck kdfhn kdkkk kdknj kdkem kdmji !̀l kdjcf kdnkm kdcmn kdggk kdecc kdhcn kdinn kdiih mdfgj mdknn mdmfh mdmik !̀a mdjcc mdjim mdnjg mdnnc mdnni mdnmh mdjei mdjnk mdmhf mdkif mdkfj mdfnj ! ! kdige kdikm kdehe kdgnh kdjgj kdmke fdimf fdehn fdghc fdgmf fdceg fdcnf ! ̀ fdnch fdnfe fdjce fdjji fdjkc fdmgm fdmmk fdmmk fdmfg fdmfj fdmfj fdmkm !  fdmjn fdmeh fdjgc fdcmj fdghn fdhgk kdfif kdmeg kdckj kdeem mdffe mdkej ! o mdnmc mdgmn mdhjk mdhef mdiij jdkge jdjfcrjdnjn jdcjn jdgef jdhnj jdimi ! p ndfkm ndkmm ndmjm ndmem ndjjm ndnhf ndckg ndcei ndcec ndckh ndnee ndnjnr�s65CF6E

tuvuwx�yz{|}z|u�~��������������������������������������������������������� ��������� �������� � ���¡�¢�� �� £��¤ ¥687B=¦§̈§¦©ª�«¬­«©�®̄ °̄ ±®�®²u³z|u�̄ {́xµv¶�·̧ u̧wx¹²u�º¹uv»¼

µxx½¼­§§¾¾¾¿x³uz¼}³u³¿wz¿|́²§½À¹zÁvz¹̧§µ¹¼x́³¹wzv§z²|ÂÀ{Â¶v»¼¿z¼½ «§«15

kwever
Rectangle



SAN MATEO COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE POOL PARTICIPANTS DISTRIBUTION
December 31, 2024

7

ATTACHMENT 3

16



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,771,095,000$          3,745,560.43$           U S Treasury Notes 549,059.58$       
Corporate Notes 824,174,000 2,763,976.23            Corporate Notes 386,707.87         
Federal Agencies 1,517,150,000            4,992,420.47            Federal Agencies 1,011,386.58      
U S Instrumentalities 294,607,000 967,789.81 U S Instrumentalities 7,260.27             
Asset Backed Securities 14,201,023 9,106.22 Asset Backed Securities 8,653.65             
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000 161,853.97 Certificate of Deposit 18,117.11           

4,458,227,023$          12,640,707.14$         US Bank Earnings Credit 19,775.94           
CAMP 354,165.18         
CALTRUST 151,183.83         

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year Dreyfus 272,300.76         
U S Treasury Notes 470,650,000$             608,048.15$             Total Realized Income 2,778,610.77$    
Corporate Notes 212,938,000 390,023.89
Federal Agencies 1,250,488,000            3,725,652.08            
U S Instrumentalities 555,016,000 1,882,687.48            
Asset Backed Securities - - 
Certificate of Deposit 506,700,000 2,270,887.05            
Dreyfus 145,110,329 - 
CAMP 225,000,000 733,739.73
CALTRUST 75,000,000 206,164.38

3,440,902,329$          9,817,202.77$           

Total Accrued Interest 7,899,129,353$          22,457,909.91$         

Total Dollar Earnings for October 25,236,520.68$         

7,693,358,765.00$     
25,236,520.68            

(620,738.13)
24,615,782.55$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.767%

ESTIMATED SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
October 2024

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.862%

5

ATTACHMENT 4

17



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,797,395,000$          4,256,602.51$           U S Treasury Notes 377,033.30$       
Corporate Notes 833,174,000 2,662,804.89            Corporate Notes 244,589.91         
Federal Agencies 1,643,470,000            5,672,761.64            Federal Agencies 632,496.32         
U S Instrumentalities 319,607,000 1,083,024.33            U S Instrumentalities 261,971.29         
U S Treasury STRIPS 25,000,000 71,179.86 Asset Backed Securities 7,881.02             
Asset Backed Securities 6,104,030 4,631.91 US Bank Earnings Credit 34,672.35           
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000 156,632.88 Dreyfus 222,132.47         

4,661,750,030$          13,907,638.02$         Total Realized Income 1,780,776.66$    

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year
U S Treasury Notes 504,450,000$             596,724.23$             
Corporate Notes 162,938,000 285,512.24
Federal Agencies 1,225,794,000            3,407,021.62            
U S Instrumentalities 565,492,000 1,710,080.78            
Asset Backed Securities - - 
Certificate of Deposit 506,700,000 2,197,632.63            
Dreyfus 332,605,178 - 
CAMP 350,000,000 1,027,369.86            
CALTRUST 100,000,000 335,753.42

3,747,979,178$          9,560,094.78$           

Total Accrued Interest 8,409,729,208$          23,467,732.80$         

Total Dollar Earnings for November 25,248,509.46$         

8,152,662,935.07$     
25,248,509.46            

(636,577.79)
24,611,931.67$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.673%

ESTIMATED SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
November 2024

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.768%

5
18



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,943,495,000$          4,784,078.86$           U S Treasury Notes 451,065.95$       
Corporate Notes 833,174,000               2,971,480.64            Corporate Notes 35,511.03           
Federal Agencies 2,195,183,000            7,616,925.38            Federal Agencies 545,970.13         
U S Instrumentalities 409,607,000               1,311,242.55            U S Instrumentalities 83,828.44           
U S Treasury STRIPS 25,000,000                 81,725.02                 Asset Backed Securities 4,431.18             
Asset Backed Securities 5,225,370                  4,273.16                   Certificate of Deposit 191,273.22         
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000                 161,853.97               US Bank Earnings Credit 40,203.48           

5,448,684,370$          16,931,579.58$         Dreyfus 860,207.82         
Total Realized Income 2,212,491.25$    

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year
U S Treasury Notes 458,450,000$             505,688.74$             
Corporate Notes 162,938,000               334,974.13               
Federal Agencies 1,176,374,000            3,272,842.10            
U S Instrumentalities 615,492,000               2,131,636.52            
Asset Backed Securities -                             -                            
Certificate of Deposit 432,700,000               1,945,522.94            
Dreyfus 117,971,851               -                            
CAMP 475,000,000               1,683,664.38            
CALTRUST 150,000,000               494,794.52               

3,588,925,851$          10,369,123.34$         

Total Accrued Interest 9,037,610,221$          27,300,702.92$         

Total Dollar Earnings for December 29,513,194.17$         

 8,968,790,387.93$     
29,513,194.17            

(723,646.24)               
28,789,547.93$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.779%

ESTIMATED SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
December 2024

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.874%

5
19



Gross Period
Par Value Earnings Earnings

Fixed Income Securities Maturing  > 1 year Realized Gain/Loss & Interest Received
U S Treasury Notes 1,943,495,000$          11,683,635.60$         U S Treasury Notes  2,821,633.75$     
Corporate Notes 833,174,000               7,458,526.24            Corporate Notes 1,810,661.94       
Federal Agencies 2,195,183,000            16,543,163.41           Federal Agencies 5,318,764.56       
U.S, Instrumentalities 409,607,000               2,988,486.89            U S Instrumentalities 1,051,017.98       
U S Treasury STRIPS 25,000,000                 152,904.88               Asset Backed Securities 34,694.85            
Asset Backed Securities 5,225,370                  4,282.28                   Certificate of Deposit 851,281.77          
Certificate of Deposit 37,000,000                 480,340.82               Dreyfus 1,354,641.05       

5,448,684,370$          39,311,340.13$         CAMP 354,165.18          
CALTRUST 151,183.83          
US Bank Earnings Credit 92,992.94            

Short Term Securities Maturing < 1 year Total Realized Income 13,841,037.84$   
U S Treasury Notes 458,450,000$             1,368,592.39$           
Corporate Notes 162,938,000               806,392.65               
Federal Agencies 1,176,374,000            9,015,548.36            
U.S, Instrumentalities 615,492,000               5,400,016.59            
Asset Backed Securities -                             -                            
Certificate of Deposit 432,700,000               5,773,810.02            
Dreyfus 117,971,851               -                            
CAMP 475,000,000               3,444,773.97            
CALTRUST 150,000,000               1,036,712.33            

3,588,925,851$          26,845,846.31$         

Total Accrued Interest 9,037,610,221$          66,157,186.44$         

Total Dollar Earnings for Q2 FY 2024-25 79,998,224.28$         

 8,272,896,867.29$     
79,998,224.28            
(1,980,962.15)            
78,017,262.13$          

*Current admin fees rate is at 9.5bp

ADMINISTRATION FEES*
NET EARNINGS RATE / NET DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.741%

SUMMARY OF POOL EARNINGS
Q2 FISCAL YEAR 2024-25

AVERAGE BALANCE
GROSS EARNINGS RATE / GROSS DOLLAR EARNINGS 3.836%

6
20



ATTACHMENT 5 
 

 
1 of 2 

 

Capital Markets Summary 4Q 2024 

In the fourth quarter of 2024, the U.S. economy expanded 
steadily, with 3.1% GDP growth, strong consumer spending, and 
a resilient labor market as unemployment held at 4.1% with 
511,000 jobs added. Inflation remained high (Core CPI 3.3%, 
Headline CPI 2.7%), prompting the Fed to cut rates twice, 
lowering the target range to 4.25%-4.50%, while signaling a 
slower pace of future cuts. Treasury yields rose, with the 10-year 
yield hitting 4.57%, leading to negative Treasury returns, while 
corporate bonds and ABS outperformed. Equities were volatile 
but gained, with the NASDAQ up 6.4% and S&P 500 rising 
2.4%, though late-quarter selloffs reflected investor uncertainty. 
Looking ahead, market fluctuations will be driven by inflation, 
Fed policy shifts, and labor market trends. 

US Treasury Yield Curve & US Treasury Yields Over Time 
 
In the fourth quarter of 2024, inflation remained persistent, with 
CPI rising to 2.7% YoY and Core CPI holding at 3.3%, slowing 
progress toward the Fed’s 2% target. U.S. Treasury yields 
increased across the curve, with 2-, 5-, and 10-year yields ending 
at 4.24%, 4.38%, and 4.57%, respectively, reflecting inflation 
concerns and shifting Fed policy expectations. The yield curve 
remained inverted but steepened, signaling market adjustments to 
a “higher for longer” rate outlook. Despite volatility, elevated 
yields continued to offer attractive investment opportunities. 

C/CAG Investment Portfolio Performance and Composition 4Q 2024 
Report Created for Finance Committee February 26, 2025  

 
  

Source: PFM (Public Financial Management)  

Source: PFM (Public Financial Management) 

21



 

 
2 of 2 

 

 

Portfolio Performance 3Q 2024 

The C/CAG investment portfolio returns for the fourth quarter of 2024 were stable, with a 4.48% return for LAIF and a 3.74% return for the County Pool Fund. LAIF’s effective yield 
decreased slightly from 4.56% to 4.48% since the third quarter of the fiscal year, and the County Pool Fund’s decreased slightly from 3.86% to 3.74% during that same time period. The total 
C/CAG portfolio asset allocation at the end of the third quarter was 60% to LAIF and 40% to the County Pool Fund, which is within the stated investment policy allocation ranges. 

 
LAIF 

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields: 

October 2024 4.518 
November 2024 4.477 
December 2024 4.434 

 

PMIA Quarter to Date: 4.48%                    PMIA Average Life: 252 days or 0.69 years 

Portfolio Composition Pie Chart: 

 

 

COPOOL 

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields: 

October 2024 3.767 
November 2024 3.673 
December 2024 3.779 

 

PMIA Quarter to Date: 3.74%                           PMIA Average Duration: 1.82 years 

Portfolio Composition Pie Chart: 

 

Source: PMIA/LAIF Performance Report as of 1/22/2025 
Source: San Mateo County Investment Portfolio Compliance Report December  2024 

22



ITEM 5 
C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 

 
Date: February 26, 2025 
 
To: C/CAG Finance Committee 
 
From: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director   
 
Subject: Review of the quarterly investment report and recommend modifications to the 

C/CAG investment portfolio as needed. 
 

(For further information contact Sean Charpentier at scharpentier@smcgov.org) 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the C/CAG Finance Committee review the quarterly investment report and recommend 
modifications to the C/CAG investment portfolio as needed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Potential for higher or lower yields and risk associated with C/CAG investments. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 
The Investment Policy applies to all C/CAG funds held by the C/CAG Financial Agent (City of San 
Carlos). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
According to the C/CAG Investment Policy adopted on September 10, 2020: 
 
“The portfolio should be analyzed not less than quarterly by the C/CAG Finance Committee, and 
modified as appropriate periodically as recommended by the Finance Committee and approved by 
the C/CAG Board, to respond to changing circumstances in order to achieve the Safety of Principal.” 
 
The Finance Committee will seek to provide a balance between the various investments and 
maturities in order to give C/CAG the optimum combination of Safety of Principal, necessary 
liquidity, and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.  
 
The LAIF Quarter Ending 12/31/24 net interest earning rate is 4.48% 
San Mateo County Pool Quarter Ending 12/31/24 net interest earning rate is 3.74% 
 
The LAIF’s average life is 252 days, or 0.69 of a year. San Mateo County Pool’s current average 
maturity of the portfolio is 2.04 years with an average duration of 1.82 years.  
 
 
 
 

23



On November 14, 2013 the C/CAG Board approved the following  C/CAG investment portfolio 
parameters:  
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)   50% to 70% 
San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL)  30% to 50% 
 
On December 2, 2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the 
increasing gap between the quarterly interest rate and the net of administrative fees of the LAIF and 
the COPOOL, with LAIF lagging behind the COPOOL. The Finance Committee recommended no 
change to the investment portfolio, but guided staff to target LAIF investments to 60% allocation and 
increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of the interest rate. 
On December 10, 2020, the C/CAG Board approved of no change to the range of limits to the C/CAG 
investment portfolio and approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation for staff to target LAIF 
investments to 60% allocation and increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon 
the changes of the interest rate. 
 
Investment allocation between LAIF and COPOOL: 

 C/CAG BOARD 
APPROVED IN 2013 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
GUIDANCE ON 12/2/2020 

LAIF 50% to 70% 60% 
COPOOL 30% to 50% 40% 

 
On December 4, 2024, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and recommend no 
change to portfolio, but guided staff to continue monitoring the interest rates. On December 12, 2024, 
the C/CAG Board approved of no change to the investment portfolio.   
 
The investment portfolio as of December 31, 2024 is as follows: 
 

  
9/30/2024 12/31/2024 

Amount Percent Amount Percent 
LAIF $17,723,603 60% $17,526,929 60% 
COPOOL $11,799,618 40% $11,706,841 40% 
Total $29,523,221 100% $29,233,769 100% 

 
Staff do not recommend adjusting the investment allocation at this time.   
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
C/CAG Investment Policy supports investment in authorized issuers that display adherence to strong 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) principles, including but not limited to, environmental 
sustainability, social and economic justice, and good corporate governance. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

1. Quarterly Investment Report as of December 31, 2024 from San Carlos 

24



Q2-CCAG Quarterly Investment Report 12-31-2024 Page 1 

C/CAG 
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

Of San Mateo County 
 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
 
 
To: Sean Charpentier, Executive Director 
From: Paul Harris, Financial Services Manager 
Date: February 26, 2025  
 
SUBJECT:  Quarterly Investment Report as of December 31, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the C/CAG Board review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
The attached investment report (Attachment 1) indicates that on December 31, 2024, funds 
in the amount of $29,233,769 were invested producing a weighted average yield of 4.18%. Of 
the total investment portfolio, 60.0% of funds were invested in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and 40.0% in the San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL). On December 
2, 2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the increasing 
gap between the quarterly interest rate, net of administrative fees, of LAIF and the COPOOL, 
with LAIF lagging behind the COPOOL. The Finance Committee recommended no change to 
the investment portfolio, but guided Staff to target LAIF investments to 60% allocation and 
increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of the interest 
rate. These percentages are within the range specified by the C/CAG Board. The portfolio mix 
reflects the Board approved percentage invested in the County Investment Pool and LAIF. 
Accrued interest earnings for this quarter totaled $319,130.  
 
Below is a summary of the changes from the prior quarter: 
 

Qtr Ended 
12/31/2024

Qtr Ended 
9/30/2024

Increase
(Decrease)

Total Portfolio 29,233,769$  29,523,221$  (289,452)$     
Weighted Average Yield 4.18% 4.28% -0.10%
Accrued Interest Earnings 319,130$       310,549$       8,581$           

 
There was a decrease of $0.2 million in the portfolio balance at the end of this quarter 
compared to the previous quarter mainly due to the timing of cash receipts offset by expenses 
for Congestion Relief and Management, Bay Area Air Quality, Measure M, NPDES and Smart 
Corridor. The slightly higher beginning balance for the second quarter resulted in an overall 
increase in accrued interest earnings as compared to the previous quarter despite the small 
decrease in average yield.  
 
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing 
basis to ensure that C/CAG’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
reasonably anticipated operating requirements. As of December 31, 2024, the portfolio 
contains sufficient liquidity to meet the next six months of expected expenditures by C/CAG.  

ATTACHMENT 1

25



Q2-CCAG Quarterly Investment Report 12-31-2024 Page 2 

All investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy.  Attachment 2 shows a historical 
comparison of the portfolio for the past nine quarters. 
 
The primary objective of the investment policy of C/CAG remains to be SAFETY OF 
PRINCIPAL.  The permitted investments section of the investment policy also states: 

 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed 
investment pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the 
maximum permitted by California State Law.  A review of the pool/fund is required 
when they are part of the list of authorized investments. 

 
The Investment Advisory Committee has reviewed and approved the attached Investment 
Report. 
 
Attachments 
1 – Investment Portfolio Summary for the Quarter December 31, 2024 
2 – Historical Summary of Investment Portfolio 

26



Attachment 1

Category

Quarterly
Interest 
Rate**

Historical
Book Value

% of 
Portfolio

GASB 31 ADJ
Market Value

Liquid Investments:

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 4.48% 17,526,929       60% 17,520,303       
San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL) 3.74% 11,706,841       40% 11,698,529       

Agency Securities
none

Total -  Investments 4.18% 29,233,769     100% 29,218,832     

GRAND TOTAL OF PORTFOLIO 4.18% 29,233,769$   100% 29,218,832$   

Total Interest Earned This Quarter 319,130          
Total Interest Earned (Loss) Fiscal Year-to-Date 629,678          

Note: CCAG Board approved the following investment portfolio mix at its November 14, 2013 meeting: 

              LAIF        - 50% to 70%

              COPOOL - 30% to 50%

*Difference in value between Historical Value and Market Value may be due to timing of purchase. Investments in the investment pools may have 
been purchased when interest rates were lower or higher than the end date of this report.  As interest rates increase or decrease, the value of the 
investment pools will decrease or increase accordingly.  However, interest rate fluctuations does not have any impact to CCAG's balance in the 
investment pools.  The market values are presented as a reference only. 
**Presented net of administrative fees

CITY & COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

SUMMARY OF ALL INVESTMENTS
For Quarter Ending December 31, 2024

On December 2, 2020, the Finance Committee reviewed the investment portfolio and noted the increasing gap 

between the quarterly interest rate, net of administrative fees, of LAIF and the COPOOL, with LAIF lagging behind the 

COPOOL. The Finance Committee recommended no change to the investment portfolio, but guided Staff to target LAIF 

investments to 60% allocation and increase COPOOL investments to 40% allocation dependent upon the changes of 

the interest rate.

27



Attachment 2

Quarterly

Interest Rate**

City/County Association of Governments Investment Portfolio

Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24
LAIF 15,480,103    15,558,262     16,365,013      16,787,787     15,478,855    16,915,927      17,093,105    17,723,603    17,526,929   
SM County Pool 10,288,794    10,384,089     10,997,275      11,204,132     10,341,684    11,267,828      11,485,218    11,799,618    11,706,841   
Total 25,768,897    25,942,350     27,362,288      27,991,920     25,820,539    28,183,755      28,578,323    29,523,221    29,233,769   

Note:  The chart type has been changed from Column to Line after receiving feedback from CCAG's Finance Committee       

City and County Association of Governments 

Historical Summary of Investment Portfolio

December 31, 2024

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

LAIF SM County Pool Total

28







































City/County Association of 
Governments of San Mateo 

County 
Redwood City, California 

Auditor’s Communication with  
Those Charged with Governance 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

ATTACHMENT 2

47



48



January 28, 2025 

To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of the  
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

Redwood City, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the City/County Association of Governments of San 
Mateo County (C/CAG) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon 
dated November 19, 2024 Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters 
relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit and the Single Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated July 11, 2024, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that 
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit 
of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of C/CAG 
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 

We also considered internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you.  

We have provided our findings regarding significant control deficiencies over financial reporting, and 
other matters noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated November 19, 2024.

49



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 2 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence.

Compilation of C/CAG’s financial statements by an us is a threat to our independence. As we were 
tasked with compiling the financial statements, we reduced the threat to our independence by assigning 
a CPA independent of the C/CAG audit team to review C/CAG’s financial statements. 

Significant Risks Identified 

We have identified the following significant risks: 
Risk of Management Override of Internal Controls – A risk of management override of internal 
controls exists at any entity where management can change or decide not to perform that entity’s 
internal controls. 
Revenue Recognition Risk – Errors in revenue recognition can affect the net position of C/CAG. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by C/CAG is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting 
policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2024. No matters have come to our attention 
that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account 
for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial 
or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 
judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are pension plan and other 
post-employment benefits (OPEB) plan assumptions.  

50



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 3 

Management’s estimate of pension and OPEB plan assumptions are based on actuarial assumptions. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate pension and OPEB plan 
assumptions and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting 
C/CAG’s financial statements relate to:  

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Cash and Investments 
Pension Plan 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards also require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us 
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant 
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each 
applicable opinion unit. Uncorrected misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected 
misstatements could potentially cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even 
though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements currently under audit. 
Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. The 
attached schedule of material misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were 
brought to the attention of, and corrected by, management: 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to C/CAG’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

51



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 4 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached 
letters dated November 19, 2024 and January 28, 2025.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with C/CAG, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or 
transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and 
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters 
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as C/CAG’s auditors. 

Single Audit Compliance 

In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about C/CAG’s 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement applicable to each of its major federal programs for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on C/CAG’s compliance with those requirements. While our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on C/CAG’s compliance with 
those requirements. 

Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations, Violations of Contract Provisions or Grant Agreements 

We have identified the following matters involving noncompliance with laws and regulations, violations 
of contract provisions or grant agreements that came to our attention during the course of the audit. 

We noted during our testing of procurements that one vendor did not have evidence of procedures by 
C/CAG that would mitigate the risk of working with a vendor that is suspended or debarred from 
participaing in federal projects.

Required Supplementary Information 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

52



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 5 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, and management of C/CAG and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Badawi & Associates, CPAs
Berkeley, California 
January 28, 2025 

53



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 6 

Corrected Material Misstatements 

54



To the Honorable Chair and Members of the Board  
 of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
Redwood City, California 
Page 7 

Corrected Material Misstatements, Continued 

C001-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 603,441$       

C002-CG-0-00-00-346-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 371,414

C004-CG-0-00-00-301-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 66,689

C006-CG-0-00-00-681-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 17,819

C007-CG-0-00-00-356-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 89,873

C010-CG-0-00-00-243-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 45,774

C032-CG-0-00-00-433-000-000-590001 TRANFR OUT 11,872

C001-CG-0-00-00-341-000-000-490001 TRANFR IN 603,441$       

C002-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 371,414

C004-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 66,689

C006-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 17,819

C007-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 89,873

C010-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 45,774

C032-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-110010 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY - CASH 11,872

Total 1,206,882$    1,206,882$    

C002-CG-0-00-00-346-000-000-420501 GRANTS 760,000$       

C002-CG-0-00-00-000-000-000-240011 Unearned Revenue 760,000$       

Total 760,000$       760,000$       

Record admin allocation prompted by audit analytics

Reclass ECR grant money as unearned

55



November 19, 2024 

Badawi & Associates, CPAs 
2855 Telegraph Ave, Suite 312 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) as of June 30, 2024, and for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing 
opinions on whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flows, where applicable, of the various opinion units of C/CAG 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of November 19, 2024: 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 
July 11, 2024, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the various 
opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements. 

5. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related 
notes. 

6. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

56



7. We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements, and 
other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been 
implemented. 

8. The methods, data, and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and 
their related disclosures, are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that 
is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.  

9. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

10. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.  

11. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  

12. All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and other joint 
ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed. 

13. All funds and activities are properly classified. 

14. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, GASB 
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State 
and Local Governments: Omnibus as amended, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for presentation as major are identified and presented as such 
and all other funds that are presented as major are considered important to financial statement 
users. 

15. All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

16. Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense 
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position/fund balance are 
available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund balance is properly recognized under 
the policy. 

17. All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program revenues, 
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to 
permanent fund principal. 

18. All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable basis. 

19. All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and 
reported. 

20. Special items and extraordinary items have been properly classified and reported. 

21. Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed. 

22. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if 
applicable, depreciated. 

57



23. All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed 
guidelines. 

24. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 

a. The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s 
intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 

b. The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are 
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 

c. The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 

d. There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements 
and disclosures included in the financial statements. 

25. With respect to providing assistance in preparation of the financial statements and related notes 
of C/CAG, we have performed the following:  

a. Made all management decisions and performed all management functions; 

b. Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services; 

c. Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed; 

d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and 

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

Information Provided  

26. We have provided you with:  

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to above, 
such as records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters; 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within C/CAG from whom you determined it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

27. The financial statements and any other information included in the annual report are consistent 
with one another, and the other information does not contain any material misstatements. 

28. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 

29. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

30. We have provided to you our analysis of C/CAG’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
including significant conditions and events present, and if necessary, our analysis of 
management’s plans, and our ability to achieve those plans. 

31. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the C/CAG and involves:  

58



a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

32. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting C/CAG’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators, or 
others.  

33. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

34. We have disclosed to you the identity of C/CAG’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

35. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with 
or deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices.  

36. C/CAG has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification 
of assets and liabilities. 

37. We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which C/CAG is 
contingently liable. 

38. We have disclosed to you all nonexchange financial guarantees, under which we are obligated 
and have declared liabilities and disclosed properly in accordance with GASB Statement No. 70, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, for those guarantees 
where it is more likely than not that C/CAG will make a payment on any guarantee. 

39. For nonexchange financial guarantees where we have declared liabilities, the amount of the 
liability recognized is the discounted present value of the best estimate of the future outflows 
expected to be incurred as a result of the guarantee. Where there was no best estimate but a range 
of estimated future outflows has been established, we have recognized the minimum amount 
within the range. 

40. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62 (GASB-
62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that 
could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, 
revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which events could 
occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year. 

41. We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts, 
including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

42. There are no: 

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements 
or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and 
regulations. 

59



b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion 
and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62.  

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed 
by GASB-62  

d. Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance with 
the agreements (Rule 240, 15c2-12). 

43. C/CAG has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such 
assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed to you. 

44. We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that 
would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

45. We have reviewed and approved the various adjusting journal entries that were proposed by you 
for recording in our books and records reflected in the financial statements. 

46. There have been no cybersecurity breaches or other cyber events whose effects should be 
considered for disclosure in the financial statements, as a basis for a loss contingency, or otherwise 
considered when preparing the financial statements. 

47. The significant judgements made in making the accounting estimates have taken into account all 
relevant information of which we are aware. 

48. We have consistently and appropriately selected and applied methods, assumptions, and data 
when making the accounting estimates.  

49. The assumptions we used in making and disclosing accounting estimates appropriately reflect 
our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the City when relevant 
to the accounting estimates and disclosures.  

50. The disclosures related to accounting estimates, including those disclosures describing estimation 
uncertainty, are complete and are reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting 
framework.  

51. We have obtained and applied appropriate specialized skills and expertise in making the 
accounting estimates.  

52. We are not aware of any events subsequent to the date of the financial statements that require 
adjustment to our accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the financial 
statements.  

53. We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the amounts related to C/CAG’s pension 
and OPEB plans, and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialist in 
determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying 
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with 
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not 
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of 
the specialists. 

54. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 

60



55. The methods and significant inputs and assumptions used to determine fair values of financial 
instruments are determined by C/CAG’s investment custodians. The methods and significant 
assumptions used result in a measure of fair value appropriate for financial statement 
measurement and disclosure purposes and are in accordance with the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.

56. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure the pension and other 
postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in 
the circumstances.  

57. With respect to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Budget and Actual statements, and 
the Pension and OPEB Plan schedules (RSI) accompanying the financial statements:  

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the RSI in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 

b. We believe the RSI, including its form and content, is measured and fairly presented in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

c. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the 
prior period.  

d. There were no significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the RSI.  

Sean Charpentier, Executive Director  Rebecca Mendenhall, Administrative  
Services Director 

61



January 28, 2025 

Badawi & Associates, CPAs 
2855 Telegraph Ave, Suite 312 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the City/County Association of 
Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) as of June 30, 2024, and for the year then ended, for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for major federal award programs pursuant to the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). We confirm 
that we are responsible for compliance with requirements applicable to our major federal award 
programs.  

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based 
on the information. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of January 28, 2025: 

With respect to federal awards, we represent the following to you:

1. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

2. We are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

3. We believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is 
fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

4. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior 
period.  

5. We are responsible for including the auditor’s report on the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards in any document that contains the schedule and that indicates that the auditor has 
reported on such information. 

6. We have identified and disclosed all of our government programs and related activities subject 
to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit. 

Docusign Envelope ID: CFBF061E-723B-4F8D-A0A9-632E76C14035

62



7. We have notified you of federal awards and funding increments that were received before 
December 26, 2014 (if any) and differentiated those awards from awards and funding increments 
received on or after December 26, 2014, and subject to the audit requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  

8. When the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is not presented with the audited financial 
statements, we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users 
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date of issuance by the entity 
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the auditor’s report thereon. 

9. We have, in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, identified in the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, expenditures made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal 
agencies in the form of grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, 
property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, food 
commodities, direct appropriations, and other assistance. 

10. We have provided to you our interpretations of any compliance requirements that are subject to 
varying interpretations. 

11. We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other 
correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken place with 
federal agencies or pass-through entities. 

12. We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a 
major program. 

13. We have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and any known noncompliance 
with the direct and material compliance requirements of federal awards, including the results of 
other audits or program reviews, or stated that there was no such noncompliance. We also know 
of no instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance requirements occurring 
subsequent to period covered by the auditor’s report.  

14. We have disclosed to you any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance 
requirements, including communications received from the end of the period covered by the 
compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report. 

15. We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct and 
material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial 
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements. 

16. Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported 
by the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared (and are 
prepared on a basis consistent with the schedule of expenditures of federal awards). 

17. The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the reports 
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, 
as applicable. 

18. We have monitored subrecipients, as necessary, to determine if they have expended subawards 
in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward 
and have met the other pass-through entity requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  

Docusign Envelope ID: CFBF061E-723B-4F8D-A0A9-632E76C14035

63



19. We have issued management decisions for audit findings that relate to federal awards we make 
to subrecipients and such management decisions are issued within six months of acceptance of 
the audit report by the FAC.  Additionally, we have followed-up ensuring that the subrecipients 
have taken the appropriate and timely action on all deficiencies detected through audits, on-site 
reviews, and other means that pertain to the federal award provided to the subrecipient from the 
pass-through entity.  

20. We have considered the results of subrecipients’ audits and have made any necessary 
adjustments to our own books and records.

21. We have properly classified amounts claimed or used for matching in accordance with related 
guidelines in the Uniform Guidance, as applicable. 

22. We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles. 

23. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit 
findings to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we have 
provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions. 

24. We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous 
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the 
objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from 
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report. 

25. The reporting package does not contain personally identifiable information. 

26. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related 
notes and an acknowledgment of the auditor’s role in the preparation of this information.  

27. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for accrual adjustments and an 
acknowledgment of the auditor’s role in the preparation of the adjustments.  

28. We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence 
with respect to conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance 
during the reporting period. 

In addition: 

29. We are responsible for understanding and complying with the requirements of federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards related to each of our federal 
programs and have identified and disclosed to you the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of federal awards that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program; and we have complied with these direct and material compliance 
requirements. 

30. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, 
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provide reasonable assurance 
that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of the federal award that could have a material effect on our federal 
programs. Also, no changes have been made in the internal control over compliance or other 
factors that might significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action taken by 

Docusign Envelope ID: CFBF061E-723B-4F8D-A0A9-632E76C14035

64



management with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 
over compliance, have occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report.  

31. We are responsible for and have accurately completed the appropriate sections of the Data 
Collection Form and we are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of the 
compliance audit and have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. 

Sean Charpentier,       Rebecca Mendenhall, 
Executive Director      Administrative Services Director 

Docusign Envelope ID: CFBF061E-723B-4F8D-A0A9-632E76C14035

65

















due to a clerical error that it was added to the wrong cell.  
 
For reference, a summary of the requested budget amendments is included in the following table: 
 
Table 1: Summary of Budget Amendments 

 
Additionally Attachment 1, Proposed Revised C/CAG Fiscal Year 2024-25 Consolidated Program Budget 
includes highlights of the proposed amendments.  
 
EQUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.    
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Revised C/CAG Fiscal Year 2024-25 Consolidated Program Budget  
2. Amended Current C/CAG Fiscal Year 2024-25 Consolidated Program Budget  

 

Fund Account Account Type
Original Budget 

Amount Change

Modified 
Budget 
Amount

Impact on 
Ending 
Balance

NPDES C7356000-480002 Revenues - NPDES Fee 1,471,800.00$ 130,802.00$ 1,602,602.00$ 130,802.00$  
NPDES C7356000-520303 Expenditures - Consulting Services 3,156,984.00$ 510,000.00$ 3,666,984.00$ (510,000.00)$ 
NPDES C7356000-520201 Expenditures - Supplies 2,000.00$        2,000.00$     4,000.00$        (2,000.00)$     
NPDES C7363000-520501 Expenditures - Prof Dues & Memberships 28,000.00$      5,000.00$     33,000.00$      (5,000.00)$     
NPDES C7356000-520503 Expenditures - Conference & Meetings/Trainings 6,000.00$        1,000.00$     7,000.00$        (1,000.00)$     
NPDES C7356000-520509 Expenditures Fee - Miscellaneous -$                  1,000.00$     1,000.00$        (1,000.00)$     
Transportation C2346000-420521 Revenues - Grants 1,757,273.00$ 20,000.00$   1,777,273.00$ 20,000.00$    
Transportation C2346000-520303 Expenditures - Consulting Services 2,721,895.00$ 20,000.00$   2,741,895.00$ (20,000.00)$   
Measure M C1024400-481022 Revenues - MTC/Federal Funding 706,268.00$    -$              -$                  -$                
Measure M C1024400-440304 Revenues - Cost Reimbursements -$                  706,268.00$ 706,268.00$    -$                

73






	3 Finance 12-4-24 Minutes Draft
	4 _SR Investment Statements
	4 A1 Cash Flows and Statements
	SMCP 12-31-24 Statement.pdf
	December 2024


	4 A2 LAIF Performance
	Report

	4 A3 CoPool Participants and A4 CoPool Performance
	4 A5 4Q Market Summary
	5 _SR Investment Reports
	5 A1 Q2 2025 CCAG Quarterly Investment Summary 12-31-24
	6 _SR_Single Audit
	6 A1 Single Audit
	6 A2 - Letter to Governance FY2024
	6 A3 - Letter to Governance FY2023
	7 _SR Procurement Policy MA
	That the C/CAG Finance Committee reviews and recommends Board approval of proposed revisions to the C/CAG Procurement Policy.

	7_A1_Procurement Policy Update 2025 Draft redlined
	Revised on November 9, 2017
	Professional Services Procurements

	8 _SR - Budget Amendment
	8 A1 Proposed Revised Feb 2025 Budget
	8 A2 Amended Aug 2024  Budget
	7 _SR Procurement Policy MA.pdf
	That the C/CAG Finance Committee reviews and recommends Board approval of proposed revisions to the C/CAG Procurement Policy.

	7_A1_Procurement Policy Update 2025 Draft redlined.pdf
	Revised on November 9, 2017
	Professional Services Procurements




